
 
 

AGENDA 
FLAT RIVER COMMUNITY LIBRARY  

BOARD MEETING 
March 12, 2025 

 
 

1.  Call to order and roll call: 
2. Approval of agenda: 
3. Approval of minutes: 
  Board meeting February 2025 
4. Public Comments:  
5. Financial Reports:  

a.      County Penal Fines for February 2025 
b.      Accounts Payable for February 2025 
c.      Monthly Financials 

6. Library Director’s Report:  
 a. Suggestion Box Comments 
7. Questions from the Board:  
8. Unfinished Business: 
9. Committees: 
10. New Business:  

a. Space Utilization Study update 
11. Public Comment:  
12. Other:  
13. Board Member Comment: 
14. Items for next agenda 
15. Future Dates:      
 a. Next Board Meeting- 6:30 p.m. Wednesday: April 9, 2025 
16.  Call to Adjourn 
 
 

  
The regular meetings of the Flat River Community Library Board are held on the second Wednesday of the 
month at 6:30 p.m. 
  
  
Stefanie Reed, Director 
 

 



 

 

The Flat River Community Library Board recognizes the value of public comment and the importance of allowing members of 
the public to express themselves on Library matters. 

Any person or group wishing to address the Board shall be requested to provide:  

A. Their name & address; 
B. Group affiliation, if and when appropriate; 
C. Topic to be addressed. 

To permit fair & orderly public expression, the Board shall provide a period for public participation at public meetings of the 
Board and publish rules to govern such participation in Board meetings and in Board committee meetings.  The rules shall be 
administered and enforced by the presiding officer of the meeting. 

Members of the public requesting that a topic be added to the agenda must contact the director or board president with their 
request one week in advance of the meeting.  

The presiding officer shall be guided by the following rules: 

A. Public participation shall be permitted as indicated on the order of business. 
B. Anyone with concerns related to the operation of the library or to matters within the authority of the Board may 

participate during the designated public participation portions of a meeting. 
C. Participants must first be recognized by the presiding officer. 
D. Each statement made by a participant shall be limited to three (3) minutes duration. 
E. During the portion of the meeting designated for public participation, no participant may speak more than once on 

the same topic. 
F. Participants shall direct all comments to the Board and not to staff or other participants. 
G. All statements shall be directed to the presiding officer; no person may address or question Board members 

individually. 
H. The presiding officer may: 

a. Interrupt, warn, or terminate a participant’s session when they make comments that are repetitive, 
obscene, and/or comments that constitute a true threat (i.e. statements meant to frighten or intimidate one 
(1) or more specified persons into believing that they will be seriously harmed by the speaker or someone 
acting at the speaker’s behest); 

b. Request any individual to stop speaking and/or leave the meeting when that person behaves in a manner 
that is disruptive of the orderly conduct and/or orderly progress of the meeting; 

c. Request the assistance of law enforcement officers in the removal of a disorderly person when that 
person’s conduct interferes with the orderly progress of the meeting; 

d. Call for a recess or an adjournment to another time when the lack of public decorum so interferes with 
the conduct and/or orderly conduct of the meeting as to warrant such action; 

e. Waive these rules. 
Pursuant to the Open Meetings Act (Act 267 of 1976), the Board may occasionally hold meetings virtually.  The Board is not 
responsible for any technology failures that prevent or disrupt any individual from attending remotely. 

Audio or video recording are permitted subject to the following conditions: 

A. No obstructions are created between the Board and the audience. 
B. No interviews are conducted in the meeting room while the Board is in session. 
C. No commentary, adjustment of equipment, or positioning of operators is made that would distract either the Board 

or members of the audience while the Board is in session. 

 
 
 
 



FLAT RIVER COMMUNITY LIBRARY 
PROPOSED MINUTES 

February 12, 2025 
 

Chairperson Darci Ward Cole called the meeting to order at 6:30 P.M. 

Present:   City of Greenville: Chairperson Darci Ward Cole, Laurel Christensen 

Eureka Township Holly Schmeltzer 

Fairplain Township: Vanessa Marr, Dawn Wyckoff 

Montcalm Township: Doug Crowley, Pam Nichols 

 

Absent:   Eureka Township: Maureen Burns 

 

Others Present:  Director Reed 

  Jim Marr 

Schmeltzer moved to approve the Agenda of the February 12, 2025 meeting. Support. Unanimously approved. 

Schmeltzer moved to approve the minutes of the January 8, 2025 meeting. Support. Unanimously approved. 

Wyckoff moved to accept the accounts financial portion of the Treasurer's report for January 2025. Support. 
Unanimously approved. 

Christensen moved to accept the monthly portion of the Treasurer's report for January 2025. Supported. 
Unanimously approved 

Library Director's Report presented. 

New Business: Sick Leave Policy. Policy updated to meet latest guidelines. Motion made by Schmeltzer. Supported. 
Unanimously approved.  

Staff Credit Card addition. Nichols moved to add Kristin Skinner to the credit card. Supported. Unanimously 
approved. 

Next regular Board meeting is March 12, 2025 at 6:30 PM 

Nichols moved to adjourn. Support. Unanimously approved. 

Respectfully submitted 
 
Laurel Christensen 
Secretary 



FLAT RIVER COMMUNITY LIBRARY  
APPROVED MINUTES 

January 8, 2025 
 
 
 

Chairperson Ward Cole called the meeting to order at 6:30 PM 

 

Present:  City of Greenville: Chairperson Darci Ward Cole, Laurel Christensen 
   Eureka Township: Holly Schmeltzer, Maureen Burns 
   Fairplain Township: Vanessa Marr, Dawn Wyckoff 
   Montcalm Township: Pam Nichols 

 
Absent:   Montcalm Township: Doug Crowley 

 

Others Present: Director Reed 

 

Schmeltzer moved to approve the Agenda of the January 8, 2025 meeting Support. 
Unanimously approved. 

Schmeltzer moved to approve the minutes of the December 11,2024 meeting. Support. 
Unanimously approved. 

Wyckoff moved to accept the accounts financial portion of the Treasurer's report for December, 
2024. Support Unanimously approved. 

Christensen moved to accept the monthly portion of the Treasurer's report for December, 2024. 
Supported. Unanimously approved. 

Library Director's Report presented. 

New Business: 

Next regular Board meeting is February 12, 2025 at 6:30 p.m. 

Nichols moved to adjourn. Support. Unanimously approved. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
Laurel Christensen 



PENAL FINES
2023/2024

For the mo of Received Amount For the mo of Received Amount

Jul-23 Aug-23 $20,103.27 Jan-24 Feb-24 $25,932.93
Aug-23 Sep-23 $30,270.92 Feb-24 Mar-24 $36,474.65
Sep-23 Oct-23 $28,805.47 Mar-24 Apr-24 $30,508.82
Oct-23 Nov-23 $30,266.96 Apr-24 May-24 $34,967.22
Nov-23 Dec-23 $20,319.84 May-24 Jun-24 $31,203.02
Dec-23 Jan-24 $22,971.36 Jun-24 Jul-24

Sub Total $152,737.82 Sub Total $159,086.64

2023 $152,737.82
2024 $159,086.64

Total to date $311,824.46

PENAL FINES
2024/2025

For the mo of Received Amount For the mo of Received Amount

Jul-24 Aug-24 $27,930.93 Jan-25 Feb-25 27,030.29
Aug-24 Sep-24 $28,776.78 Feb-25 Mar-25 23,409.91
Sep-24 Oct-24 $25,133.75 Mar-25 Apr-25
Oct-24 Nov-24 $27,124.91 Apr-25 May-25
Nov-24 Dec-24 $17,479.85 May-25 Jun-25
Dec-24 Jan-25 $20,688.19 Jun-25 Jul-25

Sub Total $147,134.41 Sub Total $50,440.20

2024 $147,134.41
2025 $50,440.20

Total to date $197,574.61



FLAT RIVER COMMUNITY LIBRARY- General Fund 
 

MONTHLY BOARD INVOICE TOTAL 
 

Date: March 12, 2025 
         

Signature Page 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________________   __________________ 
APPROVED BY:         DATE: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________________   __________________ 
APPROVED BY:         DATE: 
 









































Director’s Report 

March Board Meeting 

 Mar 12, 2025

Programs: 

Crochet 101 – 2/3 – 10 

Preschool Storytime – 2/4 – 27 

Happy Bookers – 2/4 – 8 

Mini Movers – 2/5 – 29 

TAB Meeting – 2/5 – 17 

Silent Book Club – 2/5 – 10 

Family Movie – 2/6 – 18 

Snowy Day Stories – 2/7 – 17 

Mini No-Sew Snowman Take & Make – 2/7 – 63 

Drop-In Tech Help – 2/7 – 3 

Beginner Yoga (Adult & Ages 10+) – 2/8 – 8 

Flat River Writers Group (Teen & Adult) – 2/10 – 4 

Crochet 101 – 2/10 – 9 

Preschool Storytime – 2/11 – 33 

Pizza & Pages – 2/11 – 20 

Mini Movers – 2/12 – 31 

Super Smash Bros. Tournament – 2/13 – 12 

Lights, Camera, Action!: From Greenville High School to Hollywood – 2/17 – 5 

Preschool Storytime – 2/18 – 26 

Selling Homemade Food: Learn About Michigan's Cottage Food Law – 2/18 – 20 

Mini Movers – 2/19 – 37 

TAB Meeting – 2/19 – 18 

Drop-In Tech Help – 2/21 – 1 

Boba & Beads – 2/21 – 22 

Family Puzzle Competition – 2/24 – 33 

Preschool Storytime – 2/25 – 29 

Teen Lounge Grand Opening – 2/25 – 15 

Mini Movers – 2/26 – 33 

Craft-In – 2/27 – 3 

Coloring & Coffee – 2/28 – 5 

 

General: 

Our library was the front page story in the Daily News two Mondays in a row this month. The first story 

was a fantastic feature on the Silent Book Club programs that Cass and Kristin started doing in the fall. 

The programs have been an awesome opportunity for outreach, as we partner with local restaurants 

and the off-site atmosphere feels more relaxed than any space we could provide. Cory Smith did a 

great job on the story, and it provided recognition for a cool opportunity staff put together. 

 

The second was about the Grand Opening of the Teen Lounge on Feb. 25. The Greenville Chamber of 

Commerce was kind enough to do an official ribbon cutting for us, with the teens doing the honors. 

Mayor Jeff Scoby attended and spoke as well, and the event was a fantastic testament to the kids’ 

engagement and efforts on the project. The positive response has been overwhelming. 

 



Our new Patron Services set-up is now in its early stages. All staff formerly covering circulation or 

reference desks are now providing service across their knowledge base from what was formerly 

circulation and is now the Patron Services desk. In the coming weeks, staff will work on noting positive 

and negative aspects of the new setup, and we will transition the space layout, scheduling, etc. 

accordingly. This will also come with a shift in job titles and responsibilities as we map out staff needs 

in this trajectory.  We have started our transition to a Patron Services set-up at the current circulation 

desk.  

 

We have officially migrated our phone service to a Google Voice platform as well, both to smooth out 

this new service model as well as to create more flexibility of communication. Our main phone number 

has been ported over, so the transition will be seamless for patrons; however, the interface will be 

more intuitive and will promote shared responsiveness to patron needs (for instance, if a front-end 

staff member is not able to get to a desk phone during a call, it rings through to Veronica and myself to 

limit the number of calls going to voicemail rather than a person).  

 

We are receiving a strong number of responses to our Black Field survey, and we look forward to sharing 

the results when the survey period is complete.  

 

I met with Merritt Cieslak to review the first draft of the Space Utilization Study and gave extensive 

feedback, and they will return to visit with staff later this month to continue to clarify and revise their 

results (we gave them a lot of feedback to work with initially, so we will be reviewing their drafts 

carefully to ensure we are confident they have clearly covered all of our needs and problem areas).  

 

Tiffany has finally gotten all of the logoed Baby Bags delivered for her newborn literacy initiative with 

Corewell Health, and will be packing and sending them out very soon.  

 

It’s almost time for the 2nd year launch of the Seed Library! Cass has been hard at work prepping the 

materials, and anticipates this year’s launch to take place the week of March 17. This received a 

wonderful response last year, bringing in brand new patrons who had never used our facility before, 

and we hope to see the same result again this time.  

 

Lakeland Library Cooperative:  

Lakeland is forming an ILS Steering Committee currently to explore our options to select another ILS 

system (the software on which all of our circulation and material catalog is housed). We have been on 

the Sierra ILS since the early 2000s.  

 

Staff:  

Rachel had to leave us this month as she was moving out of the area. However, our work study staffer, 

Emmie, has been taking on additional hours to compensate, and we are excited to have Sharon return 

to us part time. She was a great asset to our staff (who returned on multiple occasions to provide 

support for library programs) and we are so happy to have her back! 

 

Veronica has been facilitating the Google Voice implementation and training some staff on circulation 

procedures to better prepare them as we move to Patron Services.  

 

Tiffany is doing some prep for Summer Reading and worked with the TAB group to plan the Grand 

Opening.  

 



Kristin has been exploring ideas for integrating engaged adult patrons more actively in planning 

programs. 

 

Cass is completing seed library prep, and has participated in exploring ideas for future fundraising 

possibilities.  

 

Danielle facilitated the review of our periodicals subscriptions and is pushing out new Library of Things 

materials.   

 

Josie has been working on some memorials projects and auditing orders.  

 

Kamey helped to facilitate the reference desk switchover.  

 

Tim is training on some circulation procedures.  

 

Christine has trained on the microfilm machine functionality to prepare for helping patrons with it.  
 

Michelle finished her Mel Maven Badge, and is now working on reference interview training.  

 

Cara continues MeL and book repair training.  

  
Sam is participating in our staff professional development and has chosen to learn American Sign 

Language.  

 

Memorials: 

 

 

Meetings: 

Feb 3 - WGLM Interview 

Feb 4 - Greenville Rotary 

Feb 6 - Friends meeting 

Feb 11 - Greenville Rotary 

Feb 13 - LLC Board and Advisory Meeting 

Feb 20 - Staff Meeting 

Feb 20 - COGG Meeting 

Week of Feb 24 - Staff 1-on-1s 

Feb 25 - Greenville Rotary 

 

Alden Neitzel GHS Class of 1960 

Fred Bower GHS Class of 1960 

Thomas L. (Tom) Walkington GHS Class of 1960 

Robert L. Myers GHS Class of 1960 

Total $80 



Paid Sick Leave  
Purpose: 
 
      To establish guidelines for paid sick leave. 
 
Scope: 
 
      Applies to: 
 

● Library Director 
● Full-time hourly staff members 
● Part-time hourly staff members 

 
Service Requirement: 
  

Staff members will accrue sick leave benefits starting on date of hire, and are 
eligible to use sick hours after completion of 90 days of continuous, active, paid 
service.   

 
Eligibility: 
 

● All regular part-time and full-time employees are eligible for sick leave based on 
minimum accrual rate established in the Earned Sick Time Act.  

● Temporary employees hired for a period of 90 days or more will accrue sick time 
hours based on projected work hours per week for the contracted period of 
employment. 

 
 
Sick Leave Pay Benefits: 
 

● Must meet Service Requirement defined above 
● Calculation for the hours earned per month is based on contracted weekly hours 

agreed upon in their job offer.  
● The earned hours will be paid at the staff member’s regular rate of pay at the time 

of the sick leave.               
● Full-time staff members will be paid at 8 hours times the staff member’s regular 

rate of pay at the time of the sick leave. 
● Individual sick days will be earned according to the schedule below based on the 

weekly average work hours calculation:  
 
          Work Hours/Week                                                         Hours Earned Monthly 
                 37 – 40 hours                                                                      8  
                 35 – 36 hours                                                                      7 
                 30 – 34 hours                                                                      6 
                 25 – 29 hours                                                                      5 
                 20 – 24 hours                                                                      4 



            15 - 19 hours             3 
  5  -  14 hours            2.5 
General: 
 

● Sick leave benefits are based on the calendar year beginning January 1st. 
● Earned sick leave is available for use in 15 minute increments. 
● Sick leave benefits are to be used in the event of an absence due to personal 

illness or non-work related injury. At the discretion of the Library Director, 
sick leave days may be used as personal days to care for the employee’s 
spouse, child or a parent or relative living in the employee’s home.  After 
three contiguous absences, medical statements must be presented to the 
Library Director if requested. 

● Earned sick leave may be granted for medical, dental or mental health 
appointments. 

● Paid holidays falling within the sick leave will not be charged against the 
earned sick leave benefit. 

● If an employee requires the use of sick leave time, the employee is to report 
the illness to the Library Director, or designee, by 8:30 AM or as soon as 
the inability to report to work is known. 

● Sick leave must be taken without interruption by a “non-paid” day, unless 
approved by the Library Director. 

● Sick leave benefits may not be used to extend vacation or holidays. 
● Any unused sick leave may be accrued up to and including sixty normal 

work days. 
● Staff members shall be paid for sick days in excess of 60 days at 50% of 

their current rate of pay as of January 1st of each year.  
 

● If a staff member has exhausted all accrued sick leave benefits, an unpaid 
leave of absence may be granted at the discretion of the Library Director. 

●  Upon voluntary termination of employment, employees with 3 years or 
more tenure shall be eligible for pay out of accrued sick leave. All accrued 
benefits will be paid out at 50% of rate of pay at the time of termination. 
Employees who are involuntarily terminated or whose voluntary 
termination is the result of no-call, no-show will not be eligible for payout 
of accrued sick leave.  

Personnel 
Benefits 
Adopted:  12/8/99 
Revised:    8/16/07 
Revised: 11/14/12 
Revised: 3/13/13 
Revised: 5/12/21 
Revised: 2/14/24 
Revised: 2/12/25 
 



Since 1854 — News from Montcalm County and Ionia County, Michigan

Enjoy the silence
 Open Audio Article Player

Flat River Community Library brings readers together in silence with Silent Book Club 
By Cory Smith

on February 24, 2025

From left, Veronica Johansen of Gowen, Flat River Community Library Marketing and Outreach Librarian Cass Vargo, Derek Stuhan of Casnovia, Library Adult Services and Programming Specialist Kristen

Skinner and Michelle and Dave Seppala of Greenville sit together in silence while reading different books during the library’s Silent Book Club event at Flat River Brewing Co. on Feb. 5. — DN Photo | Cory

Smith

GREENVILLE — Sipping on locally crafted beverages, with their feet propped up sitting opposite each other in the comfort of a padded booth, friends

Kathy Lehman and Therese Schrauben were perfectly content not speaking to each other as nearly an hour passed.

The two Belding residents were each deeply invested in the books they had brought with them to Flat River Brewing Co., intrigued by what attending

their first Silent Book Club event hosted by the Flat River Community Library would have in store for them.

PHOTO GALLERY

0:000:00 / 0:00/ 0:00

···

3/7/25, 9:59 AM Enjoy the silence - The Daily News

https://www.thedailynews.cc/articles/enjoy-the-silence/ 1/4

https://www.thedailynews.cc/
https://www.thedailynews.cc/
https://www.thedailynews.cc/audio-articles/player/audio-article-303638
https://www.thedailynews.cc/audio-articles/player/audio-article-303638
https://www.thedailynews.cc/author/csmith/


For Lehman, the 45 minutes spent reading her book in silence among the dozen people participating proved to be everything she hoped it would be.

“I can’t stay home and do this, I get too distracted — the dishes need to be done, the laundry needs to be folded and Facebook calls for me,” she said. “I

would rather do those things, but I love to read, so this way, I’m able to do that and I don’t feel guilty.”

While Schrauben participates as a member of the Belding Book Club, she admitted it can be difficult to find time, without distractions, to sit down and

read the assigned material.

However, aside from taking the occasional break to sip her beverage, she found her time at Flat River Brewing Co. to be the perfect environment to

catch up on her reading.

“This event forced me to crack the book open,” she said. “The library staff made us feel so welcome, and it was just so fun.”

Spearheaded by Library Marketing and Outreach Librarian Cass Vargo, the Silent Book Club is now in its second “season,” in which the venue for the

monthly event changes every four months.

Held the first Monday of each month at 7 p.m., Vargo said the first season was held at Winter Inn, with the current second season settling in at Flat River

Brewing Co.

The concept is simple — bring yourself and a book, take a seat, order food and beverages if you desire, and read in silence for 45 minutes.

The final 15 minutes of the hour-long event is then dedicated to an optional discussion time.

“This is really low pressure. It’s getting together with people, reading a book, and you don’t have to talk to anybody if you don’t want to,” Vargo said.

“You can order some apps, a drink, read your book and leave. But we’ve found that we’ve made some really great friends in the community. We’ve met

some patrons that we didn’t really know were our patrons.”

Inspired by silent book club events in Grand Rapids, Vargo was looking for a way to engage with library patrons outside of the walls of the library.

“What’s the fun in just always staying at the library? We live and work in this community, we’re a part of the community, so we want to be out in the

community,” she said. “We want everyone to know that we are here for them. We’re going to share everything that we can, our resources and

programming.

“Personally, I think it’s just fun that everyone can get together and read whatever they want in a no-pressure environment,” she continued. “From fiction

to nonfiction, there’s just a very wide variety of things to read. People at the library expressed interest in having a book club but didn’t necessarily want

to all read the same book, or maybe weren’t interested in what book a club might pick. This event allows them to read without that pressure.”

After participating on her own in January, Otisco Township resident Sharon Boldt decided to make February’s event a family affair, and together, she

and her husband, Eric, and their two children, Tad, 17, and Olivia, 13, sat together in silence, each reading a variety of different books.

“It’s nice because it feels like we’re coming together again, without any pressure,” Sharon said. “There’s no, ‘How was your day? What did you do?’ But

we’re still all together, which is a nice feeling.”

Sharon added that had the family chosen to stay home and read together, there was little chance they’d all manage to read uninterrupted for 45

minutes.

3/7/25, 9:59 AM Enjoy the silence - The Daily News

https://www.thedailynews.cc/articles/enjoy-the-silence/ 2/4

https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0224-cs-Silent-book-club-14-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0224-cs-Silent-book-club-14-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0224-cs-Silent-book-club-14-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0224-cs-Silent-book-club-12-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0224-cs-Silent-book-club-12-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0224-cs-Silent-book-club-12-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0224-cs-Silent-book-club-13-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0224-cs-Silent-book-club-13-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0224-cs-Silent-book-club-13-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0224-cs-Silent-book-club-11-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0224-cs-Silent-book-club-11-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0224-cs-Silent-book-club-11-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0224-cs-Silent-book-club-10-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0224-cs-Silent-book-club-10-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0224-cs-Silent-book-club-10-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0224-cs-Silent-book-club-9-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0224-cs-Silent-book-club-9-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0224-cs-Silent-book-club-9-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0224-cs-Silent-book-club-8-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0224-cs-Silent-book-club-8-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0224-cs-Silent-book-club-8-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0224-cs-Silent-book-club-7-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0224-cs-Silent-book-club-7-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0224-cs-Silent-book-club-7-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0224-cs-Silent-book-club-6-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0224-cs-Silent-book-club-6-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0224-cs-Silent-book-club-6-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0224-cs-Silent-book-club-5-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0224-cs-Silent-book-club-5-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0224-cs-Silent-book-club-5-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0224-cs-Silent-book-club-4-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0224-cs-Silent-book-club-4-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0224-cs-Silent-book-club-4-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0224-cs-Silent-book-club-3-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0224-cs-Silent-book-club-3-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0224-cs-Silent-book-club-3-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0224-cs-Silent-book-club-2-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0224-cs-Silent-book-club-2-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0224-cs-Silent-book-club-2-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0224-cs-Silent-book-club-1-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0224-cs-Silent-book-club-1-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0224-cs-Silent-book-club-1-scaled-1.jpg


“Being in a place like this, I think that helps because when I’m at home I’m more apt to be distracted,” she said. “Here, everyone’s doing the same thing,

and that makes it normal.”

For Eric, sitting with his family and reading together without distractions was a perfect way to spend the evening.

“It’s a comfortable silence,” he said. “It’s an opportunity to be together and not have the stress of trying to come up with conversation or interact when

maybe you don’t want to that day. Here, we’re all reading something that we’re interested in. We’re doing it together, but separate enough where we can

have private enjoyment together.”

Despite an occasionally boisterous euchre tournament taking place on the other side of the brewery, Eric and his family welcomed the background

noise.

“When I read, I shut off the world around me,” he said. “I just completely get immersed in what I am reading. We were able to completely disconnect for

an hour. I love it. I’ve always been a reader. I like reading a physical book. 

“It’s relaxing, it’s calming, and while my phone went off for work three or four times while we were here, I ignored it the whole time, all so I could enjoy

disconnecting for a little while.”

For Tad, a Greenville High School senior enrolled in the Montcalm Community College Early College program, joining her family for the book club event

meant a break from her college courses and daily social activities, such as communicating on a computer screen via her Minecraft server. 

“I often hang out with my friends online, but I actually left that behind today to be here,” she said. “So it’s nice to have a moment to just sit down and

read. I haven’t been able to do that as much recently, so it was nice to just take a moment to do that.” 

Having recently lost her grip on dedicating time for reading, Tad said she enjoyed the fact her family was able to block out time for reading without any

distractions, which allowed her to immerse herself in a teen fantasy novel. 

“If I try to read at home alone, there’s so many other things I could be doing, I am easily distracted,” she said. “Sitting here, with everyone reading

around me, you see that’s what we’re all doing and the distraction is removed. I do better in this environment. I can’t do headphones, I can’t do music.

Having the ambient noise of other people around me, it keeps me focused.” 

As the 45-minute reading period concluded, Olivia found herself stepping away from her family’s table to enjoy the 15 minutes of conversation with the

other participants of the event. 

Choosing to read “The Odyssey,” the Greenville Middle School eighth-grader explored her curiosity in asking other patrons what they were reading and

why. 

“I really enjoyed talking with other people about what they read, getting some different influences about what I might read next,” she said. “It was nice

to have some comfort around me, with my family and other people. You can have different interests, but you always have some conclusion that you can

come together on, even if you’re reading a hardcover, softcover, something on a kindle and the books are completely different from each other.” 

For Gowen resident Veronica Johansen, attending her first silent book club meeting will not be her last time doing so. 

“I’ll be back. I just enjoy going somewhere where people like to do what I do, which is reading and drinking,” she said with a laugh. “I get to know what

other people are reading, what new books are coming out. Tonight, I found a new option for my husband to read.” 

The next meeting of the library’s Silent Book Club will be 7 p.m. on March 5 at Flat River Brewing, and Vargo is hopeful even more patrons will attend

than the dozen who did so this month.

“Even if somebody is just here at the bar, curious about what’s going on, we brought spare books for them to read. We just want people to read and be

together — and all of our events are always free,” she said. “Technically, the event is geared toward adults, but obviously, we welcome teens, too.

Everybody is welcome, always.

“I hope people can see that the library is not just librarians shushing you in a building. We also love to read, and we want everyone to enjoy the joy of

reading.”

If you go …

What: The Flat River Community Library’s Silent Book Club

Where: Flat River Brewing Co. (Location will be announced on the library’s website events calendar and social media before each program.)

When: 7 p.m. on March 5 (the first Wednesday of each month.)

Read: There’s no assigned reading. Just bring a book to read for the first 45 minutes, and, if you would like, stay for the last optional 15 minutes to

discuss your reading. 

Information: Visit flatriverlibrary.org, call (616) 754-6359 or email FlatRiver@flatriverlibrary.org

3/7/25, 9:59 AM Enjoy the silence - The Daily News

https://www.thedailynews.cc/articles/enjoy-the-silence/ 3/4

http://flatriverlibrary.org/
mailto:FlatRiver@flatriverlibrary.org


Since 1854 — News from Montcalm County and Ionia County, Michigan

A space of their own
 Open Audio Article Player

Flat River Community Library in Greenville opens new Teen Lounge
By Cory Smith

on March 03, 2025

From left, Greenville Middle School sixth-grader Lilly Steward, 12, sixth-grader Aevry Hamel, 11, seventh-grader Avery Bergman, 12, and sixth-grader Jona Green, 12, work on crafts as they enjoy time spent in

the new Teen Lounge at the Flat River Community Library in Greenville on Feb. 25. — DN Photo | Cory Smith

GREENVILLE — Having served on its Teen Advisory Board (TAB) for six years, Emma Read, 18, practically views the Flat River Community Library as a

home away from home.

However, being a teenager and wanting to do teenager things in the quiet confines of a public library can present its challenges.

“The section of the library for teens, there wasn’t much to do and the space was very lackluster,” Read said. “There were maybe two chairs and some

bookshelves. It was a little boring.”

Since the library was built in 1997, its teen section has remained essentially unchanged. To create a more engaging space, library board members

collaborated with TAB over several years to transform the small corner of the library into a welcoming area designed to support how teenagers learn

and play.

0:000:00 / 0:00/ 0:00

1 for $0.99

50% Off

1 for $211.90

3/7/25, 9:58 AM A space of their own - The Daily News

https://www.thedailynews.cc/articles/a-space-of-their-own/ 1/4

https://www.thedailynews.cc/
https://www.thedailynews.cc/
https://www.thedailynews.cc/audio-articles/player/audio-article-304182
https://www.thedailynews.cc/audio-articles/player/audio-article-304182
https://www.thedailynews.cc/author/csmith/
https://us.creativecdn.com/clicks?id=20250307_GPSZak9Opru22eTaSHHD&tk=W3WK9dkUq3gUccVXymyx3idx35if8UuAyuZ3nOu6dnkkIuU9GtzTV_FCIducD48fOQSxaIMvlLWubFf8GdCGU66OPf13J8d6fqcm3vEBcZIsdIJ3wBRduBZynYSzZ_nHLBWQlnLvkMxA3cQ4BmtyfW4yZgaXtw7vbqG6yscd25NORdAnt0NKTWAZ2rxGSHsBI2BAbZK2Eyr0VoUaX-QNBttay7cZbd_ShkXl-w3k_ZQ1tQ5fdz5tRRrVf_cp9gp9zClMjVcKLiakCey-0qBV5EaQ46V247tgmVEM48j2Oyjvd9m1MLmqHc2OrvSlZOGaWQ3lYvJvowZXUtz7bS0n1gZ9s3DfdvzudbFLsr9tRyDsl8UKfViJJP-xfNrbTnbXaQ8_1R4N5oAW6eOJ1sC8vp-F1JJL-5nQftPh9QJ4mvVwArSzBNhAjDxQRR9oJXKslIHlbQPLznTCC4kZVWdgEFZB3BwY2zBsUC5qkp0ydTU
https://us.creativecdn.com/clicks?id=20250307_GPSZak9Opru22eTaSHHD&tk=qWoAPiwjb9i3PEdiw5vv0GR0BqsgYmEJz9Bqzvc7pEqF0CrZjFKriV_P8lWPzYzj0adQJ-b6kuSkJXUl9StFTtlbcOrHuYLvoefYkXAbX-7smNS37QBrtTNVB-FWiutLNkVHWEOgrH1QSk-HY0Tv78yvWDg36LUTGxqrBpsQDJ_ZI0Wf9eCLCDotGfUKvihGmdNMrrgPRZtUMLDr4Hq2M3AFWsfW1ikC56ndJbyxnqHyl7nc7q2dMAcU9UpT01WfLdWSWHlvRGo9VJgSRNW6HyTm1Gm7ssduUgP5pesveKE3umokrsUailUezhjDZKVX6Nx__JUuGQkGOrSpzhT1fAyox8TD0yyhg55Nn26luoNCRFZi_nUHljgXR5eJ5O9xouuUENpiKeiYRtoCWMD4l4UFo3ze66d-Rsha-IDW1UEQxYPrNTcIoyDHokD8GSloXaHUEkwksnKu0ifaWOJa3dUylwy51jogzw42SuPNoVA
https://us.creativecdn.com/clicks?id=20250307_GPSZak9Opru22eTaSHHD&tk=qWoAPiwjb9i3PEdiw5vv0GR0BqsgYmEJz9Bqzvc7pEqF0CrZjFKriV_P8lWPzYzj0adQJ-b6kuSkJXUl9StFTtlbcOrHuYLvoefYkXAbX-7smNS37QBrtTNVB-FWiutLNkVHWEOgrH1QSk-HY0Tv78yvWDg36LUTGxqrBpsQDJ_ZI0Wf9eCLCDotGfUKvihGmdNMrrgPRZtUMLDr4Hq2M3AFWsfW1ikC56ndJbyxnqHyl7nc7q2dMAcU9UpT01WfLdWSWHlvRGo9VJgSRNW6HyTm1Gm7ssduUgP5pesveKE3umokrsUailUezhjDZKVX6Nx__JUuGQkGOrSpzhT1fAyox8TD0yyhg55Nn26luoNCRFZi_nUHljgXR5eJ5O9xouuUENpiKeiYRtoCWMD4l4UFo3ze66d-Rsha-IDW1UEQxYPrNTcIoyDHokD8GSloXaHUEkwksnKu0ifaWOJa3dUylwy51jogzw42SuPNoVA
https://us.creativecdn.com/clicks?id=20250307_GPSZak9Opru22eTaSHHD&tk=qWoAPiwjb9i3PEdiw5vv0GR0BqsgYmEJz9Bqzvc7pEqF0CrZjFKriV_P8lWPzYzj0adQJ-b6kuSkJXUl9StFTtlbcOrHuYLvoefYkXAbX-7smNS37QBrtTNVB-FWiutLNkVHWEOgrH1QSk-HY0Tv78yvWDg36LUTGxqrBpsQDJ_ZI0Wf9eCLCDotGfUKvihGmdNMrrgPRZtUMLDr4Hq2M3AFWsfW1ikC56ndJbyxnqHyl7nc7q2dMAcU9UpT01WfLdWSWHlvRGo9VJgSRNW6HyTm1Gm7ssduUgP5pesveKE3umokrsUailUezhjDZKVX6Nx__JUuGQkGOrSpzhT1fAyox8TD0yyhg55Nn26luoNCRFZi_nUHljgXR5eJ5O9xouuUENpiKeiYRtoCWMD4l4UFo3ze66d-Rsha-IDW1UEQxYPrNTcIoyDHokD8GSlocErNYvvdRocWmaNc87YYmf2vYk6vatqrYqYhiwrlc9s
https://optout.rtbhouse.com/?utm_source=optout_icon&oot=FebEyJfL_oBZY7w5DOVOzFy5qk_Vx1WhXCqimRNAdIon8MPr7xEb_7MekFcWWOwnw3q_lbxTk87ODrxZ2JAiI2NLr18oiduLU7sohfDRdbQ&dsa_show=0&dsa_behalf=Cimpress+USA+Incorporated


PHOTO GALLERY

Last week, members of TAB, library staff and the Greenville Area Chamber of Commerce came together to celebrate the grand opening of a new space at

the library — the Teen Lounge — designed entirely to accommodate the needs and desires of teenagers.

For students such as Read, a homeschooled student from Montcalm Township, having a space dedicated to her age group at the library provides for a

more immersive and enjoyable experience with each visit.

“This new space means a lot,” Read said. “I’ve been really looking forward to it being finished for quite a while now. It’s so cozy. With the walls and the

doors, you can be a little louder without disturbing other people in the library.”

According to Library Director Stefanie Reed, the student members of TAB were heavily involved in the planning and designing of the Teen Lounge, from

the colors picked for the carpet, walls and furniture to the kinds of games and other crafts made available for use.

···

···

3/7/25, 9:58 AM A space of their own - The Daily News

https://www.thedailynews.cc/articles/a-space-of-their-own/ 2/4

https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0303-cs-FRCL-Teen-Lounge-1-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0303-cs-FRCL-Teen-Lounge-1-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0303-cs-FRCL-Teen-Lounge-1-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0303-cs-FRCL-Teen-Lounge-6-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0303-cs-FRCL-Teen-Lounge-6-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0303-cs-FRCL-Teen-Lounge-6-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0303-cs-FRCL-Teen-Lounge-5-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0303-cs-FRCL-Teen-Lounge-5-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0303-cs-FRCL-Teen-Lounge-5-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0303-cs-FRCL-Teen-Lounge-4-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0303-cs-FRCL-Teen-Lounge-4-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0303-cs-FRCL-Teen-Lounge-4-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0303-cs-FRCL-Teen-Lounge-3-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0303-cs-FRCL-Teen-Lounge-3-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0303-cs-FRCL-Teen-Lounge-3-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0303-cs-FRCL-Teen-Lounge-2-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0303-cs-FRCL-Teen-Lounge-2-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0303-cs-FRCL-Teen-Lounge-2-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0303-cs-FRCL-Teen-Lounge-7-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0303-cs-FRCL-Teen-Lounge-7-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0303-cs-FRCL-Teen-Lounge-7-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0303-cs-FRCL-Teen-Lounge-8-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0303-cs-FRCL-Teen-Lounge-8-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0303-cs-FRCL-Teen-Lounge-8-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0303-cs-FRCL-Teen-Lounge-10-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0303-cs-FRCL-Teen-Lounge-10-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0303-cs-FRCL-Teen-Lounge-10-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0303-cs-FRCL-Teen-Lounge-11-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0303-cs-FRCL-Teen-Lounge-11-scaled-1.jpg
https://www.thedailynews.cc/wp-content/uploads/2025/02/loc-0303-cs-FRCL-Teen-Lounge-11-scaled-1.jpg


“I am really grateful for all of the input they gave while we were doing this and how much they threw themselves into it,” she said. “If I say so myself,

they made some really good choices. Now they are lucky enough to have their own self-crafted area that is the coolest in the library, one that everyone

else is going to be jealous of.”

The Teen Lounge is sectioned off from the rest of the library, surrounded by large glass windows, two glass doors and a textured ceiling that all operate

as sound-dampening measures.

The room features casual seating spaces, floor seating, dedicated study tables and one-person study desks for homework.

Additionally, the space includes a Nintendo Switch video game system, board games, crafting materials, Legos and other items for teenagers to engage

in, such as laptops for doing homework.

According to Reed, the concept behind the Teen Lounge came from an unintentional lack of focus at the library on teenagers in general.

Dating back to the library’s construction, Reed said the building was designed as a welcoming space for adults, with a focus also placed on early

literacy for children.

“The age group of teenagers tended to get lost in that, partly because trying to find a mechanism by which to make them feel comfortable and interested

in the space is difficult,” Reed said. “You can tell them they are welcome, but that doesn’t mean they feel welcome.”

As a result, Reed said the Teen Lounge was designed as a space for teenagers to enjoy with other teenagers, and no one else.

“Seeing them embrace the space today, it is a fantastic feeling,” she said. “It dovetails with what we originally hoped and anticipated for the space, that

it would have a multiplicity of purposes, allowing it to shift into what the kids need it to be.”

Reed said the Teen Lounge will operate as a space for teenagers and teenagers only.

“The only limitation is this is a space specifically for them,” she said. “Adults are not allowed and younger children aren’t allowed. That was the intent.

Our staff is making sure it stays that way. A teen is not going to enter that space if they don’t feel it’s theirs. They have some autonomy, but it’s a safe

autonomy.”

To create a space that the library would be confident teenagers would enjoy, Reed said they had to be involved in the process.

“We really had to meet them where they were in order to give them a safe haven to be themselves in this space and not feel as though we are imposing

our own ideas on them, of what they should be doing,” she said. “We worked with the architect and they gave us some direction. They provided us a

scope and the kids, they grabbed onto it and decided on what they felt would be the best options for what they wanted the space to be.”

Reed expects the Teen Lounge to be used on a near-constant basis going forward.

“The day after the last piece of furniture went in there, before we even announced anything, there were a handful of kids already in there using the

space — kids I had never seen in the library before,” she said. “Sometimes that age group can get a little rowdy, but this space, it’s not only safe, but a

place where they can be a little bit ridiculous. They will be under our watchful but understanding eye.”

For Youth and Teen Services Librarian Tiffany Ohman, seeing the teenagers have a space to be themselves in the library is a dream come true.

“We have teens who, while they had been coming to the library for a long time, they didn’t stay to hang out, do their homework and find it as a great

peaceful environment,” she said. “TAB helped in making all of the final decisions for this space, so I’m really excited they get to benefit from this now.”

Among those who were excited to see the space in use was Greenville Mayor Jeff Scoby, who, after having sat in one of the room’s Eero Aarnio-style ball

chairs, expressed regret that he was too old to use the space.

“This is an exciting new adventure for the library and great for the teens,” he said. “This lounge has a fishbowl appearance, and while everyone can look

in, only teens can enter. It’s neat to see that teen interaction made this happen.”

Chamber Executive Director Paul Sischo noted that while he has helped orchestrate dozens of ribbon-cutting events for businesses, the opening of the

Teen Lounge may be the “coolest” he’s attended.

“We love to celebrate with the community when cool things happen and this room is one of the coolest things I’ve seen in a long time,” he said. “I know

it’s not for me, and that’s OK. I’m glad the teens have this space and I know a lot of people put in a lot of hard work to make this happen.”

According to Reed, the project came in at a cost of approximately $200,000, utilizing the library’s general fund dollars.

“The board felt strongly that that kind of investment was really going to make a significant difference to enable us to provide new things for that cross-

section of kids,” she said.

Flat River Community Library is a district library and operates under an agreement with the city of Greenville and Eureka, Fairplain and Montcalm

townships. Each of those municipalities provides two board members, appointed by those municipalities, who serve on the library’s board.

3/7/25, 9:58 AM A space of their own - The Daily News

https://www.thedailynews.cc/articles/a-space-of-their-own/ 3/4


	 
	 
	AGENDA 
	FLAT RIVER COMMUNITY LIBRARY  



